
 
 
 

Area Planning Committee (Central and East Durham) 
 
 
Date Tuesday 22 February 2011 

Time 1.00 pm 

Venue Council Chamber, County Hall, Durham 

 
 

Business 
 

Part A 
 
 
1. Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 1 February 2011.  (Pages 1 - 8) 

2. Declarations of Interest (if any).   

3. Applications to be determined by the Area Planning Committee 
(Central & East Durham).   

 a) 4/10/893/FPA - Former Durham Gilesgate Primary School, Kepier 
Crescent, Gilesgate Moor, Durham, DH1 1PH.  (Pages 9 - 30) 

  Erection of 20 dwellings comprising 11 no. affordable dwellings 
and 9 no. young parent apartments (including 1 no. wheelchair 
accessible unit) together with young parent communal facility, all 
with associated landscaping, parking and revised access 
arrangements. 
 

 b) PL/5/2010/0584 - Moor View, Station Road, Murton, SR7 9RN.  
(Pages 31 - 38) 

  Demolition and Reconstruction of Dwelling. 
 

4. Appeal Update.  (Pages 39 - 42) 

5. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, 
is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration.   

6. Any resolution relating to the exclusion of the public during the 
discussion of items containing exempt information.   



 
 

Part B 
 
Items during which it is considered the meeting will not be open to the 

public (consideration of exempt or confidential information) 
 
7. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, 

is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration.   

 
 
 

Colette Longbottom 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
County Hall 
Durham 
 
14 February 2011 
 
 
 
 
To: The Members of the Area Planning Committee (Central and East 

Durham) 
 

 Councillor C Walker (Chair) 
Councillor M Plews (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 Councillors J Bailey, A Bell, J Blakey, G Bleasdale, J Brown, 
P Charlton, M Dixon, D Freeman, S Iveson, R Liddle, J Moran, 
K Thompson and B Wilson 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Paula Nicholson                         
     Tel 0191 3727655 

Email: 
paula.nicholson@durham.gov.uk 

 



 

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

At a Meeting of Area Planning Committee (Central and East Durham) held in Council 
Chamber, Easington Council Offices on Tuesday 1 February 2011 at 1.00 pm 

 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor C Walker (Chair) 

 

Members of the Committee: 

Councillors J Bailey, J Blakey, G Bleasdale, M Dixon, S Iveson, R Liddle and M Plews 
 
Apologies: 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors A Bell, J Brown, J Moran and  
K Thompson 
 

 
1 Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 11 January 2011.  

 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 11 January 2011 were confirmed as a correct 
record by the committee and signed by the Chair. 
 

2 Declarations of Interest (if any).  
 
Councillor Dixon declared a prejudicial interest in Application 4/10/898/FPA and 
withdrew from the Meeting during consideration thereof. 
 

3 Applications to be determined by the Area Planning Committee (Central & 
East Durham).  
 
(a) PL/5/2010/0525 – Walkers Snack Foods (Distribution) Ltd, Stephenson 

Road, Peterlee, SR8 4AX 
 High Bay Extension to Distribution Centre 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Principal Planning Officer (Easington 
Area Office) which recommended the application for approval. The Principal 
Planning Officer explained that Members had visited the site that day, and gave a 
detailed presentation on the main issues outlined in the report. 
 
Councillor Dixon indicated that the development was large which would impact on 
the landscape and he sought clarification on how far discussions had taken place 
with the type of materials to be used for the external walls as indicated in condition 
No. 3. 
 
The Principal Planning Officer advised the Committee that large sample boards 
would be located on site, so that a decision on the materials to be used could be 
made. 
 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



Councillor Liddle asked if Heavy Good Vehicles could use Thorpe Road and not 
Lowhills Road. 
 
Resolved: That the application be APPROVED subject to the conditions contained 
in the report. 
 
(b) PL/5/2010/0530 – Mr and Mrs P Wayman, Tweddle Farm, Fillpoke Lane, 

Blackhall, TS27 4BT 
 Additional Facilities to Animal Farm to Include Childrens Amusement 

Park, Involving Indoor and Outdoor Pedal Go-Kart Tracks, Indoor Play 
Building, Outdoor Play Equipment and Use of A Former Railway 
Carriage as Play Area Shelter; Erection of Buildings, Animal Shelters 
and Pens Associated With the Keeping of Domestic Farm Animals and 
Non-Exotic Animals and Native Bird Species; Enlargement of Existing 
Ponds, Provision of Associated Visitor Facilities Including Cafe, Gift 
Shop and Additional Visitor Car Parking (Retrospective) 

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Principal Planning Officer (Easington 
Area Office) which recommended the application for approval. The Principal 
Planning Officer explained that Members had visited the site that day, and gave a 
detailed presentation on the main issues outlined in the report. 
 
Mr Robinson an objector indicated that the access road to Tweddle Farm was a 
shared access and as a result of the volume of traffic compromised it’s use. The 
original application was for 30 – 40 vehicles a week but this has now increased to 
100 vehicles a day. Concerns of Health and Safety on the road were raised as the 
road was not adequate for buses and the volume of traffic.  He also raised concerns 
with the various buildings which did not fit into the rural environment and had been 
constructed on an ad hoc basis. He referred to the previous permission which 
stated that no further buildings be placed on site but the applicants had ignored this 
condition. 
 
Mr Bird an objector who lived in the adjacent farm spoke in addition to the letter he 
had submitted. He indicated that at the time of the original application he did not 
object but vehicles to the site were now in excess of 300 a day and that the opening 
times were now longer and there was extra traffic and noise. He said that the 
animal shelter looked like a dolls house and the buildings could be seen from the 
main road and rail line. He raised great concerns with the road in particular that 
vehicles were unable to pass as the road was narrow. He asked that the council 
take control or it would end up an amusement park in the countryside. 
 
The Principal Planning Officer indicated that Highways had undertaken an 
assessment and offered comments on this basis. He indicated that the buildings 
reflected the different activities and were acceptable and appropriate in scale. This 
was partly an unauthorised development that the applicants were seeking to 
address. He asked that the recommendation should be amended to include that a 
Section 106 agreement as referred to in the report be completed before planning 
approval was issued. 
 

Page 2



Mr Scorer speaking on behalf of the applicant indicated that the zoo was not under 
consideration and that there was no problem with the Section 106 agreement. He 
advised the Committee that the applicants had financed everything they owned for 
the development but they admitted that they had made some errors which was why 
they had submitted the planning application to regulate the position. He thanked 
Officers for their assistance and professional manner and asked that the application 
be approved. 
 
The Highways Officer indicated that the road was narrow but was capable of 
dealing with two cars passing each other. They had asked for three passing spaces 
and some widening of parts of the road and alligator teeth at the entrance and to 
limit the number of coaches on the site. He also advised the committee that there 
had been no recorded accidents on this road and from a Highways point of view the 
site was acceptable. 
 
Members raised concerns at retrospective applications and enforcement. 
 
Councillor Plews sought clarification on whether the caravan had planning approval. 
The Principal Planning Officer indicated that the caravan had planning permission 
but it had now expired. 
 
Councillor Dixon asked how many people were employed and indicated that if the 
application was approved then it was essential that the car park was moved. The 
screening put in place and the caravan moved would need also to be enforced. 
 
The Principal Planning Officer advised the Committee that they employed 6 full-time 
and 30 part-time workers. 
 
Resolved: That the application be APPROVED subject to the Section 106 
agreement referred to and to conditions contained in the report. 
 
(c) PL/5/2010/0540 – Mr B Armstrong, Land Adjacent the Bungalow, 

Brackenhill Avenue, Shotton Colliery 
 5 No. Dwellings and Associated Works 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Principal Planning Officer (Easington 
Area Office) which recommended the application for approval. The Principal 
Planning Officer explained that Members had visited the site that day, and gave a 
detailed presentation on the main issues outlined in the report. 
 
Councillor Blakey asked if a condition could be imposed that the vegetation be 
removed before works commenced. 
 
The Principal Planning Officer advised the Committee that this would normally be 
appropriate before occupancy and that site traffic would not warrant removal of the 
vegetation. 
 
Councillor Dixon raised concerns that distance standards had not been achieved.  
 

Page 3



The Principal Planning Officer advised the Committee that these were only 
guidelines, they do try to achieve the standards in all cases but it was difficult to 
achieve without compromise on this particular site given its size and shape. There 
were overriding benefits in developing the site. The distances were not significantly 
sub-standard and would not impact on adjacent residents, it would be properties 
within the site. 
 
Resolved: That the application be APPROVED subject to the conditions contained 
in the report. 
 
(d) 4/10/00812/VOC – Crosby Homes Yorkshire Ltd, Sheraton House, 

Sheraton Park, Darlington Road, Nevilles Cross, Durham 
 Variation of condition 10 of planning permission 4/10/223 to enable 

provision of alternative construction site access arrangements 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Development Control Manager 
(Durham City Area Office) which recommended the application for approval. The 
Development Control Manager gave a detailed presentation on the main issues 
outlined in the report. 
 
Resolved: That the application be APPROVED subject to the conditions contained 
in the report. 
 
(e) 4/10/00845/FPA – Mr S Williams, Land west of 4 South Terrace, 

Framwellgate Moor, Durham 
 Erection of 2 no. dwellings with associated parking together with 

upgrading of access from Front Street 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Development Control Manager 
(Durham City Area Office) which recommended the application for approval. The 
Development Control Manager gave a detailed presentation on the main issues 
outlined in the report. 
 
Resolved: That the application be APPROVED subject to the conditions contained 
in the report. 
 
(f) 4/10/00891/FPA and 4/10/00892/LB – St. John’s College, Durham 

University, Land to Rear of 4, 5, 6 and 7 South Bailey, Durham 
Demolition of existing Library Building and Erection of 2 no. Two and a 
Half Storey Student Accommodation Blocks (66 rooms) to Rear of 
Existing University Accommodation with Associated Works to Existing 
Buildings 

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Development Control Manager 
(Durham City Area Office) which recommended the application for approval. The 
Development Control Manager explained that Members had visited the site that 
day, and gave a detailed presentation on the main issues outlined in the report. 
 

Page 4



Mr Brown the agent indicated that they were aware that the site was sensitive and 
that they understood concerns. They were grateful of the time given by Officers and 
the way Officers treated them was exemplary.  
 
Councillor Dixon indicated that this development would help alleviate the problems 
of students occupying houses in the city centre and as the rooms would be let 
outside of term time it would contribute to the economy. 
 
Councillor Blakey raised concerns that the development would create a gap in the 
Grade II listed wall. 
 
The Development Control Manager advised the Committee that the wall was a 
Grade II* and that the gap would be created sensitively. English Heritage had not 
raised any concerns and as it was a listed building it would be extremely precise in 
the level of detail. 
 
Mr Brown the agent advised the Committee that it was a Grade II not a Grade II*. 
 
Councillor Plews asked what would happen if something of archaeological interest 
was found. The Development Control Manager indicated there were clear 
mechanisms in place for archaeology to be involved. 
 
Resolved: (i) That the application for planning permission (4/10/00891) be 
APPROVED subject to the conditions contained in Appendix A to the report. 
 
(ii) The Members be MINDED TO APPROVE the application for listed building 
consent (4/10/00892) subject to the conditions contained in Appendix B to the 
report. 
 
(g) 4/10/00898/FPA – Mr J Collinson, 3 Smith Close, Sherburn Village, 

Durham, DH6 1RG 
 Erection of Two Storey Pitched Roof Extension to Front of Existing 

Dwelling (Revised and Resubmitted)  
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Development Control Manager 
(Durham City Area Office) which recommended the application for approval. The 
Development Control Manager explained that Members had visited the site that 
day, and gave a detailed presentation on the main issues outlined in the report. 
 
Mrs Davidson speaking in objection to the proposal indicated that she had concerns 
with regard to the parking of vehicles on the site in particular the caravan and the 
impact the extension would have on sunlight to her property. She asked if the 
Council could impose a condition that the caravan be parked elsewhere as she 
believed the applicant would continue to park the caravan at his property which 
would be up against her fence which was next to her conservatory. She went on to 
say that her neighbouring property had a high apex roof and she felt if this proposal 
was approved she would be blocked in on both sides. 
 
The Development Control Manager advised the Committee that the proposal would 
still provide parking for 2 vehicles on site which was the required number. With 

Page 5



regard to the loss of light, while on site this was looked at, and the distances that 
would be available were such that it was not expected to result in a loss of light to 
justify refusal of the application. The extension would be set below the ridge line 
which further helped minimise its visual impact. Planning permission was not 
normally required to store a caravan in your own curtilage but he could see why this 
could give rise to concern. The applicant had agreed to store the caravan off site 
but he suggested that if members approve the application then a further condition 
be added to limit the period of time the caravan could be stored at the property. 
 
Members agreed that an extra condition limiting the period of time the caravan 
could be stored be added and asked if the boat could also be included in this 
condition. 
 
Members were advised that the boat was much smaller than the caravan and it was 
proposed to store the boat in the garage. 
 
Resolved: That the application be APPROVED subject to the conditions contained 
in the report and the inclusion of an extra condition limiting the period the caravan 
could be stored at the property. 
 

4 Appeal Update.  
 
Appeals Received 
 
The Principal Planning Officer (Easington Area Office) gave details in relation to the 
following appeals which had been lodged with the Planning Inspectorate. 
 
(i) Appeal by Mr D Middlemiss 
 Site at Seaton Nurseries, Seaton Lane, Seaham, Co. Durham,  

SR7 0LT 
 Planning Reference – PL/5/2010/0306 
 

An appeal had been lodged against the Council’s refusal of outline planning 
permission for residential dwellings with all matters reserved at the above 
site. 
 
Planning permission was refused as it was considered that the proposal 
would result in residential development outside the established settlement 
boundaries as identified in the District of Easington Local Plan and had 
limited access to community facilities, shops and public transport. 
 
The appeal was to be dealt with by means of written representation, and 
members would be informed of the outcome in due course. 
 

(ii) Appeal by Mr J Oliver 
Site at Hastings House Farm, Littletown, Durham, DH6 1QB 
Planning Reference – PL/5/2010/0442 
 
An appeal had been lodged against the Council for the non-determination of 
an application for the change of use from office accommodation and canteen 

Page 6



building to include agricultural worker’s accommodation and associated 
alterations to elevations at the above site. 
 
The appeal was to be dealt with by means of written representations, and 
members would be informed of the outcome in due course. 

 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 - 1 -

 
Planning Services 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 

APPLICATION DETAILS  

 
APPLICATION NO: 4/10/00893/FPA 

FULL APPLICATION DESCRIPTION: 

 
Erection of 20 dwellings comprising 11 no. affordable 
dwellings and 9 no. young parent apartments (including 
1 no. wheelchair accessible unit) together with young 
parent communal facility, all with associated 
landscaping, parking and revised access arrangements 

 

NAME OF APPLICANT: 

 

Tees Valley Housing Limited 

 

SITE ADDRESS: 

 

Former Durham Gilesgate Primary School 
Kepier Crescent 
Gilesgate Moor 
Durham 

 

ELECTORAL DIVISION: 

 

Gilesgate 

 

CASE OFFICER: 

 

Andrew Inch, Senior Planning Officer 
(0191) 301 8745, Andrew.inch@durham.gov.uk 
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND PROPOSALS 

  
1. The application site relates to the former Durham Gilesgate Primary School, which is 
located approximately 1.3miles to the north-west of Durham City Centre, within the northern 
part of Gilesgate, at the end of Bradford Crescent.  The site is bordered to the east by the site 
access, Dixon’s Lane, which leads from Bradford Crescent and Musgrave Gardens and beyond 
by a leafy pathway providing an important pedestrian route round the northern edge of the site 
to a small parade of shops. Beyond the access is Durham Gilesgate Junior School and its 
associated playing fields.  To the south lies Kepier Community Clinic and the rear gardens of 
Whitwell Court, a recent residential development of bungalows.  To the north and west lie the 
residential dwellings in Willowtree Avenue and Aspen Close, respectively. 
 
2. The site itself has been vacant since 2004 when the former school buildings were 
demolished, having been deemed surplus to educational requirements. There remain areas of 
hardstanding and foundations. The south west corner of the site contains a group trees, whilst 
along the western and northern site boundaries there are a number of more mature and in 
some cases important trees.  
 
 

Agenda Item 3a

Page 9



 - 2 -

3. Planning permission is sought for the redevelopment of the site for residential 
development comprising the erection of 11 two storey semi-detached (one detached) 
affordable dwellings. These properties would be located along the southern and eastern site 
boundaries adjacent to Aspen Close and Whitwell Court. The second part of the proposals 
comprises a development of 9 apartments with an associated communal facility for occupation 
solely by young parents. The facility would be staffed during the day to offer guidance and 
assistance to the occupiers in adapting to life as young parents. Amenity space in the form of 
play facilities and allotments will be provided for the residents of this element of the scheme. All 
of the twenty proposed dwellings would be of traditional pitched roof construction with grey 
tiles, while facing elevations would feature a mix of brickwork, through colour render and timber 
cladding.  
 
4. Access to the site would be retained from the Musgrave Gardens/Bradford Crescent 
junction, and would be shared with the adjacent school. However, a number of improvements 
would be made to the access including the installation of new drop kerbs for pedestrians, the 
widening of the carriageway to provide 2m wide footpaths with new associated barriers, as well 
as rumble strips. The existing site access is modified slightly, and leads into the site where a 
total of 33 parking paces would be provided, two of which would be for disabled users.  
 
5. Accompanying the application is a number of detailed reports including: Planning 
Statement; Design and Access Statement; Statement of Community Involvement; 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment; Contaminated Land Desk Study Report; and, Extended 
Phase 1 and Protected Species Survey. 
 
6. The application is reported to Committee as the number of units proposed is such that 
the scheme constitutes Major development. 
 

PLANNING HISTORY 

 
7. There is no planning history for the site of direct relevance to the application. 

 

PLANNING POLICY 

 

8. NATIONAL POLICY: 

 
Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development sets out the overarching 
planning policies on the delivery of sustainable development through the planning system.  
 
Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing underpins the delivery of the Government’s strategic 
housing policy objectives and our goal of ensuring that everyone has the opportunity to live 
in a decent home, which they can afford in a community where they want to live. 
 
Planning Policy Statement 9: Biodiversity and Geological Conservation, sets out planning 
policies on protection of biodiversity and geological conservation through the planning 
system. These policies complement, but do not replace or override, other national planning 
policies and should be read in conjunction with other relevant statements of national 
planning policy. 
 
 
 

Page 10



 - 3 -

Planning Policy Guidance note 13: Transport seeks to integrate planning and transport at the 
national, regional, strategic and local level and to promote more sustainable transport 
choices both for carrying people and for moving freight. 

 
Planning Policy Statement 22: Renewable Energy, sets out the planning policies for 
renewable energy, which planning authorities should have regard to when preparing local 
development documents and when taking planning decisions. 
 
Planning Policy Statement 23: Planning and Pollution Control, contains the policies and the 
advice that are material to decisions on individual planning applications and where proposals 
involve development on land likely to be contaminated, applications shall be accompanied 
by a survey of the site to asses the likely extent, If any, of contamination. 

 
The above represents a summary of those policies considered most relevant. The full text can be accessed at: 

http://www.communities.gov.uk/planningandbuilding/planning/planningpolicyguidance/planningpolicystatements 

 

9. REGIONAL POLICY: 

 
The North East of England Plan - Regional Spatial Strategy to 2021 (RSS) July 2008, sets 
out the broad spatial development strategy for the North East region for the period of 2004 to 
2021. The RSS sets out the region's housing provision and the priorities in economic 
development, retail growth, transport investment, the environment, minerals and waste 
treatment and disposal. Some policies have an end date of 2021 but the overall vision, 
strategy, and general policies will guide development over a longer timescale. Of particular 
relevance to this application are the following policies: 
 
Policy 4 (The Sequential Approach to Development) provides that a sequential approach to 
the identification of land for development should be adopted to give priority to previously 
developed land and buildings in the most sustainable locations. 
 
Policy 7 (Connectivity and Accessibility) seeks to promote the need to reduce the impact of 
travel demand particularly by promoting public transport, travel plans, cycling and walking, 
as well as the need to reduce long distance travel, particularly by private car, by focusing 
development in urban areas with good access to public transport. 
 
Policy 8 (Protecting and Enhancing the Environment) seeks to promote measures such as 
high quality design in all development and promoting development that is sympathetic to its 
surroundings. 
 
Policy 24 (Delivering Sustainable Communities) refers to the need to concentrate the 
majority of the Region’s new development within the defined urban areas, and the need to 
utilise previously developed land wherever possible. 
 
Policy 38 (Sustainable Construction) sets out that in advance of locally set targets, major 
developments should secure at least 10% of their energy supply from decentralized or low-
carbon sources. 
 

The above represents a summary of those policies considered most relevant. The full text can be accessed at: 

http://www.gos.gov.uk/nestore/docs/planning/rss/rss.pdf 

 

 

 

Page 11



 - 4 -

 
10. LOCAL PLAN POLICY: 
 
Policy E14 (Trees and Hedgerows) sets out the Council's requirements for considering 
proposals that would affect trees and hedgerows.  The loss of ancient woodland will not be 
permitted.  Tree preservation orders will be designated as necessary.  Development 
proposals will be required to retain areas of woodland, important groups of trees, copses and 
individual trees and hedgerows wherever possible and to replace trees and hedgerows of 
value which are lost.  
 
Policy E15 (Provision of New Trees and Hedgerows) states that the Council will encourage 
tree and hedgerow planting.   
 
Policy E16 (Protection and Promotion of Nature Conservation) is aimed at protecting and 
enhancing the nature conservation assets of the district.  As far as possible, unacceptable 
harm to nature conservation interests will be avoided. Mitigation measures to minimise 
unacceptable adverse impacts upon nature conservation interests should be identified. 
 
Policy H2 (New Housing within Durham City) states that new residential development 
comprising windfall development of previously developed land will be permitted within the 
settlement boundary of Durham City provided that the proposals accord with Policies E3, E5, 
E6, Q8, R2, T10 and U8A. 
 
Policy H12 (Affordable Housing) seeks the provision of an element of affordable housing on 
schemes where over 25 units are provided or where the site area would exceed 1.0ha. The 
associated Cabinet approved (December 2006) Supplementary Planning Document advises 
that 30% of all dwellings on a site providing over 25 dwellings should be provided as 
affordable units in perpetuity.  
 
Policy H13 (Residential Areas – Impact upon Character and Amenity) states that planning 
permission will not be granted for new development or changes of use which have a 
significant adverse effect on the character or appearance of residential areas, or the 
amenities of residents within them. 
 
Policy H16 (Residential Institutions and Student Halls of Residence) states that the Council 
will be permissive of such developments provided that: they are well related to existing 
facilities and services; satisfactory amenity space for residents is provided; they do not 
detract from the character or the appearance of the surroundings; and, that the amenity of 
surrounding residents is not adversely affected. 
 
Policy T1 (Traffic – General) states that the Council will not grant planning permission for 
development that would generate traffic likely to be detrimental to highway safety and / or 
have a significant effect on the amenity of occupiers of neighbouring property. 
 
Policy T10 (Parking – General Provision) states that vehicle parking should be limited in 
amount, so as to promote sustainable transport choices and reduce the land-take of 
development. 
 
Policy R2 (Provision of Open Space – New Residential Development) states that in new 
residential development of 10 or more units, open space will be required to be provided 
within or adjacent to the development in accordance with the Council's standards.   
 

Page 12



 - 5 -

 
Policies Q1 and Q2 (General Principles Designing for People and Accessibility) state that the 
layout and design of all new development should take into account the requirements of all 
users. 
 
Policy Q3 (External Parking Areas) requires all external parking areas to be adequately 
landscaped, surfaced, demarcated, lit and signed.  Large surface car parks should be 
subdivided into small units.  Large exposed area of surface, street and rooftop parking are 
not considered appropriate. 
 
Policy Q5 (Landscaping – General Provision) sets out that any development which has an 
impact on the visual amenity of an area will be required to incorporate a high standard of 
landscaping.   
 
Policy Q8 (Layout and Design – Residential Development) sets out the Council's standards 
for the layout of new residential development.  Amongst other things, new dwellings must be 
appropriate in scale, form, density and materials to the character of their surroundings.  The 
impact on the occupants of existing nearby properties should be minimised. 
 
Policy U8a (Disposal of Foul and Surface Water) requires developments to provide 
satisfactory arrangements for disposing foul and surface water discharges.  Where 
satisfactory arrangements are not available, then proposals may be approved subject to the 
submission of a satisfactory scheme and its implementation before the development is 
brought into use.   
 
Policy U11 (Development on Contaminated Land) sets out the criteria against which 
schemes for the redevelopment of sites which are known or suspected to be contaminated. 
Before development takes place it is important that the nature and extent of contamination 
should be fully understood. 
 
Policy U14 (Energy Conservation) states that the Council will encourage the effective use of 
passive solar energy and the reduction of wind-chill in the layout, design and orientation of 
buildings. 
 

The above represents a summary of those policies considered most relevant in the Development Plan the full text, criteria, 
and justifications of each may be accessed at http://www.cartoplus.co.uk/durham/index.htm 

 

CONSULTATION AND PUBLICITY RESPONSES 

 

11. STATUTORY RESPONSES: 

 
The Highway Authority has provided a detailed response. The site has formerly been used 
as an Infants School and as such it had a vehicular access along a road of substandard 
width but which would have carried a modest level of traffic. The proposed use is a mix of 
affordable dwellings and a young parent scheme. The latter use is likely to result in very few 
vehicular trips with only occasional visitors using private cars. The number of affordable 
dwellings is only 11 and likely to result in around 60 to 80 trips per day; a light flow when 
spread across the day. The access road would be widened and improved to an adoptable 
standard with the pedestrian barrier being reinstated along the footway. The layout of the 
road in the vicinity of the primary school entrance will be altered to create a clear crossing 
point for children to enter the site and where the crossing patrol would operate. They are 
satisfied that the internal road layout is suitable for adoption and that the car parking 

Page 13



 - 6 -

provision is adequate, and while they are aware of the congestion at the school entrance in 
the morning and afternoon this only exists for a short period, and the light traffic associated 
with proposed scheme would not cause increased danger to pedestrians than at present. 
Finally, the existing estate infrastructure can accommodate the level of development 
proposed, and consequently, the Highway Authority raises no objection to the proposals. 
 
The Police Architectural Liaison Officer has advised that as the scheme has been developed 
in accordance with Secured by Design standards, they have no objection. 
 
Northumbrian Water Limited raises no objection but recommend the imposition of a condition 
requiring the submission of details regarding the disposal of surface water drainage form the 
scheme. 
 

12. INTERNAL CONSULTEE RESPONSES: 

 
The Area Planning Policy Section have no in principle policy objection to the application, as 
it would constitute windfall development within the built up area of Durham. 

 

The Design and Historic Environment Section consider the development of the site to be 
appropriate; however, they have made a number of suggestions relating to the layout of the 
site, the elevational treatments and the loss of the trees and hedgerows. A number of 
conditions are proposed. 

 

The Ecology Section has advised that the site is of low ecological value, but recommends 
that in order to safeguard wildlife, appropriate mitigation should be secured by condition. 

 

The Environmental Health Section recommend a condition regarding site operating hours 
and methods, as well as a number of conditions regarding the need for further survey work 
to be undertaken regarding contaminated land. They raise no objection, however, to the 
application. 

 

The Landscape Section initially raised concerns over the loss of a number of trees and 
hedgerows, however, following further discussions and the submission of a revised 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment, they are now satisfied that the minimum number of trees 
to facilitate the development are now proposed for removal, and consequently, subject to the 
imposition of appropriate conditions to protect the trees during construction, they raise no 
objection. 

 

The Sustainability Section is supportive of the attainment of Code for Sustainable Homes 
Level 4, and this should be confirmed through the submission of a design stage assessment 
and a carbon emissions report. 

 

13. PUBLIC RESPONSES: 
 
Prior to the submission of the application, the applicants provided a public exhibition in 
October 2010 inviting local residents by individual letter to attend. The proposals subject of 
the application are a revised scheme to that presented at the exhibition, since the applicants 
have sought to take on board concerns raised by local residents. The layout of the site has, 
for example, been amended significantly to hand the two elements of the scheme. 
 

Page 14



 - 7 -

 
The application was publicised by way of press and site notice, as well as individual letters to 
some 248 nearby properties. In view of the approaching festive period and inclement 
weather at the time of the consultation period, the statutory period of 21 days was extended 
by a further 7 days. 
 
There is widespread public opposition to the application subject of this report.  At the time of 
writing there have been some 199 individual representations objecting to the planning 
application. Members should note that the letters received include repeat responses and 
multiple responses from individual households.  
 
Of the 199 representations received, 98 were in the form of two different standard signed 
letters. The first of the standard letters comprises 68 of the 98 responses received and the 
following issues are raised: traffic density on the approach roads is already too great for a 
residential area and the proposals will increase this at a busy six-point junction; young 
women of 16-18 years requiring specialist support for dealing with drugs, alcohol and 
domestic violence will be housed in the scheme, and this will lead to others with similar 
problems congregating, leading to antisocial behaviour and crime; the inclusion of CCTV  is 
unsuitable for the area; the development is high density and out of keeping with the area; 
and, finally, the loss of trees will spoil the appearance of the area and affect wildlife. 
 
The second standard letter comprises some 30 letters, all received after the expiration of the 
consultation period, and the following issues are raised: that children will be exposed to 
drug, alcohol and anti-social behaviour; risk of children finding needles and discarded drugs; 
increase in crime as a result of the criminal element that the site will attract; and an 
increased road safety risk around the school; and, that the scheme will be a burden on tax 
payers and the funding could be better spent helping unemployed people. 
 
The remaining 101 letters of objection raise a number of material planning issues, however, 
in view of the number of responses received, together with their depth, it would be 
impracticable to provide an entire review of each response. Broadly the objections raised are 
in relation to the following main issues:  
 

• The use of the existing access will cause additional congestion and increase the 
safety risk to children and pedestrians in and around an already complicated and 
excessively used junction; 

• The site is not accessible in terms of shops or public transport, having only a single 
bus service which goes into the City Centre; 

• Loss of light and privacy as a result of the two storey nature of the development 
proposed in comparison to the site as it currently exists and in relation to the former 
single storey buildings; 

• The density of the scheme is excessive and not in keeping with the character of the 
area; 

• Two storey development would not be in keeping with the area’s character; 

• Loss of trees in terms of the visual impact and the impact upon wildlife; 

• The lack of an ‘environmental study’ or ‘environment assessment’ is queried given the 
impacts upon road traffic, congestion, safety and local wildlife; 

• That the protected species survey was not informed by the detailed scheme 
proposed; 

• Flood risk will be increased through further surface water run-off; 
 

Page 15



 - 8 -

• The age of residents will increase noise and nuisance to local residents; 

• The use of the site to treat drug, alcohol and domestic violence will lead to an 
increase in crime and anti-social behaviour in the area and that there is a direct 
correlation between such facilities and an increase in crime and anti-social behaviour 
in an area; 

• The use of CCTV and security fencing suggests that the operators expect problems, 
and that the scheme would be unmanaged during the night; 

• Comparisons are drawn with a similar scheme in Bishop Auckland, in terms of the 
effect on crime figures in that area since the facility opened. Specific crime figures are 
provided; and, 

• Fear of being the subject of crime or antisocial behaviour. 
 
The responses also refer to the development being used as a bail hostel and a facility 
specifically for the treatment of drug, alcohol, and domestic violence.  
 
The Local Member for Parliament has provided detailed comments on the scheme. She is 
concerned that the proposed access road to the site will pose a risk to the safety of children 
going to and from the Primary School due to an increased flow of traffic, and is uncertain that 
enough measures have been put in place to ensure the safety of pedestrians in this area. 
Aside from this, she considered there to be no other reasons for objection on planning 
grounds, finding that the need for such a scheme in North Durham, and particularly in 
Durham City, is well evidenced, and that as a brownfield site in a residential area this plot 
has always been a favourable location for housing development. The site is not public open 
space but a former school site which Durham County Council has identified as “suitable for 
development within the next 5 years” in the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 
2008/09. As well as delivering affordable housing, this development also contains a small 
unit for young mothers who would struggle to bring up their young children without support.  
She considers it unfortunate that many objectors have been misled about the nature of this 
scheme but hopes that Members of the committee will recognise the valuable service it will 
provide. 
 

Belmont Parish Council expresses their disappointment at not having been informed of the 
consultation event undertaken by the applicants. They object to the scheme and raise issues 
including: the lack of an ‘Environmental Impact Study’; the density of the development; the 
impact on the drainage system; the very limited play and recreation space provided; the 
effect of two storey dwellings on properties in Aspen Close and Whitwell Court; possible 
sound nuisance effects; and, the removal of all trees from the site. Their particular concern is 
the shared access with the school and that the development could pose a danger to 
pedestrians, especially children, and also give rise to congestion. They recommend the 
application be refused. 
 

Carrville and Belmont Residents Association have expressed concerns on behalf of local 
residents. Such concerns relate to the inappropriateness of the site due to its location 
adjacent the school and Aged Miners bungalows; concern over the access road; the 
inadequacy of the consultation carried out by both the applicants and the Council’s Planning 
Services Section in terms of time-scale and circulation; and finally, serious concerns about 
the nature of the development and its management as staff would not be present during the 
night. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



 - 9 -

14. APPLICANTS STATEMENT: 
 

Representatives from TVHL have met with the adjoining School and Durham County 
Council’s Highway Department and a design for the proposed access to the development 
has been developed, taking into consideration the close proximity of the school and the safe 
access required for pupils.   
 
We will continue to work with the school closely to ensure that adequate speed measures, 
signage and barriers to segregate pupils and traffic will be put in place as part of the final 
specification of the road, its markings and signage.   
 
The access road to the development will as set out in the proposals be wider than the 
existing access and we have ensured that the homes have adequate parking on site.  
Therefore there should be no impact for existing residents because of parking issues and 
subject to agreement of the detailed design and specifications with the highways department 
we expect to improve the safety of the pupils through improvements to existing 
arrangements.  
 
Our identical young parents scheme in Bishop Auckland has been open since 2007 and 
during this time no complaints have been received from residents living nearby to the 
scheme. Parents of children at a nearby school park in the parking area adjoining the 
scheme and walk their children to the nearby primary school which demonstrates that 
parents of children of that school are comfortable with the customers at our young parents 
scheme. 
 
The young parents supported by the service will come from a range of backgrounds, but the 
reason for the provision is to help them to gain life skills for independent living in order to 
improve their life chances and those of their young children.  This includes helping them to 
get education, training and access to work as well as improving their life skills and parenting 
skills.  Staff from Tees Valley Housing will be on site and are able to support the young 
people with these personal developments. 
 

The above represents a summary of the comments received on this application. The full written text is available for 
inspection on the application file which can be viewed at 

(http://82.113.161.89/WAM/showCaseFile.do?action=show&appType=planning&appNumber=10/00893/FP A 
 

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND ASSESSMENT 

 
15. The main issues to consider are the principle of redeveloping the site for residential 
development, whether there would be significant adverse effects upon visual amenity, the 
amenity of nearby residents, particularly addressing public concern about anti social 
behaviour, as well as highway safety, the interests of flora and fauna, flooding and drainage, 
sustainable construction, and contaminated land. 
 
Principle of Residential Development 
 
16. The application site comprises some 0.5ha of land, which has remained vacant 
since the demolition of the former school buildings in 2004, which were deemed to be 
surplus to educational requirements. Areas of hardstanding and foundations on the site 
demonstrate that the site is previously-developed or brownfield. The redevelopment of the 
site which is within the settlement limits of Durham City as defined on the Local Plan 
Proposals Map would therefore represent the windfall development of previously-developed 

Page 17



 - 10 - 

land, which accords fully with the aims of PPS3, Policy 4 of the RSS and Policy H2 of the 
Local Plan. In addition, the site has been identified in the 2008/09 Strategic Housing Land 
Availability Assessment (SHLAA) as a suitable housing site appropriate for development in 
the period up to 2013. The principle of redeveloping the site for residential purposes is 
therefore acceptable. The precise nature of the residential uses involved will be discussed 
later in this report. 
 
17. In terms of the site’s sustainability and accessibility, a small shopping parade can be 
found on Willowtree Avenue, around 100m from the site, while 300m from the site are the 
various shops and services on Marshall Terrace including convenience food stores and hot 
food takeaways. Slightly further from the site but within walking distance is the Durham City 
Retail Park, the Dragon Lane Retail Park and Tesco superstore. Access to public transport is 
also considered sufficient, as the number 63 bus passes through Musgrave Gardens 
providing a direct link to both the City Centre and other destinations around the City. The site 
therefore lies in a highly sustainable and easily accessible location where reliance on the 
private car to access shops, services and employment opportunities are minimized. Indeed it 
is for these reasons, together with the proximity to a range of educational facilities, that the 
site has been chosen as a suitable location for not only new affordable family housing, but 
for a scheme designed to specifically cater for parents with children.  
 

18. A significant part of the proposals are 11 affordable two storey dwellings. Although 
the applicants have indicated that these would be affordable (4 being social rented and 7 
shared ownership)  and managed by a Registered Social Landlord, the scheme as a whole 
is below the number of units identified at Policy H12 of the Local Plan and the accompanying 
Supplementary Planning Document, where it would be appropriate to seek a proportion of 
affordable housing, and as such, there is no requirement to secure the delivery of the 
affordable housing either by way of planning agreement or condition. 
 

Scale, Density, Design, and Materials 
 

19. Policies H2 and Q8 of the Local Plan require that new residential developments are 
appropriate in scale, form, density and materials to the character of the surroundings. The 
proposed development would be two storey’s and some 7.5 to 8.5m in height which is in-
keeping with the predominant character of the area, as evidenced by properties in the 
adjacent Willowtree Avenue, Bradford Crescent and Musgrave Gardens, for example. 
Although a number of properties in Aspen Close, which adjoins the site to the east, are 
Dutch-style dormer bungalow’s their scale is consistent with two storey dwellings, while the 
Aged Miners bungalows in the adjoining Whitwell Court and the buildings formerly on the site 
are acknowledged as single storey, a scheme of two storey buildings would not, it is 
considered, be discordant and would not be harmful to the character of the area.  
 
20. A number of objectors are particularly concerned that the scheme is too dense and 
out of keeping with the character of the area. The scheme proposes some 20 residential 
units on a site of 0.5ha, thereby achieving a dwelling per hectare density (dph) of 40. PPS3, 
whilst still seeking to ensure the efficient and effective use of previously-developed, was 
amended in June 2010 to remove reference to minimum density levels that ought to be 
provided and in doing so, removed any reference to an appropriate figure for density at 
national, regional or local planning policy levels. The Strategic Housing Market Assessment 
(SHMA) for County Durham undertaken in 2008, indicated that in the absence of identified 
density policies, in urban and suburban environments a minimum density should be in the 
region of 30 to 40 dph. The density figure of 40 dph is considered to be appropriate and 
comparable to the density of surrounding residential development, and is considered to not 
be excessive. In this regard, the scheme complies with Policies H2 and Q8 of the Local Plan.  

Page 18



 - 11 - 

 
21. In terms of design, the buildings would be of traditional pitched roof construction, but 
a number of design features are incorporated in order to provide a more attractive and 
contemporary appearance. Such features include the use of a mix of materials, pitched roof 
gable features to front elevations, feature canopies over doors and articulation of elevations 
between buildings all adding visual interest. The surrounding area is comprised of a wide 
range of architectural styles, and it is this range which gives the area part of its character. 
The proposed dwellings, with their slightly contemporary appearance would add further to 
the character of the area. The careful use of materials including a mix of colour-through 
renders, red brickwork, timber cladding and grey tiled roofs will ensure the buildings are 
distinctive but not discordant to the character of the area. In these respects, it is considered 
that the scheme accords with Policies H2 and Q8.  
 
22. Policy Q8 also requires the provision of open and play space within developments of 
10 or more units in accordance with Policy R2 and Appendix 3 of the Local Plan. While the 
scheme does include open and play space provision to some extent along the northern site 
boundary in the form of play facilities and allotments, there is an identified deficiency in the 
overall level. Where such a deficiency is identified, developers are required to enter into a 
Section 106 planning agreement to facilitate the provision of new or improved play areas and 
recreational/leisure facilities to serve the development. The applicants have submitted a 
unilateral undertaking under s106 to provide a financial contribution of some £1000 per 
residential unit in lieu of on-site provision. This accords with Policies R2 and Q8of the Local 
Plan.  
 
Residential Amenity 
 

23. Policy Q8 of the Local Plan sets out separation distances that should be achieved 
between existing and proposed dwellings, in order to ensure that the residential amenity of 
existing and prospective occupiers is safeguarded in terms of outlook, privacy and loss of 
light, for example. Required distances are that 21m is provided where habitable room 
windows would face one another, and 13m in the case of a blank gable to habitable room 
windows. In this case, the site has been laid out in such a way that the distance between 
no.s 6 and 7 Aspen Close and the rear elevations of plots 9-11 would be a minimum of 
20.5m, which is considered to not be so significantly below the 21m that it would cause 
significant adverse effects upon the amenities of either the existing or prospective residents 
such that the scheme could be reasonably resisted. Distances of at least 23m are provided 
between proposed dwellings and those in Whitwell Court, with the exception of plot 7 and 4 
Whitwell Court. A distance of 18.5m would be provided between the ground floor dining 
room window of the proposed dwelling and the rear of 4 Whitwell Court. Whilst below the 
recommended distance, it is considered that factors including that the proposed dwellings 
are on lower ground level and to the north of Whitwell Court together with a 2m high 
boundary fence are such that the amenity of the existing occupiers would be safeguarded in 
terms of privacy and overshadowing. It is therefore considered that the layout of the 
proposed buildings would not give rise to privacy loss, loss of outlook or overshadowing for 
the occupiers of either existing or proposed dwellings, in accordance with Policies H2, H13 
and Q8 of the Local Plan. 
 

Public Concern  
 

24. Public fear and apprehension about the impact of a development is capable of being 
a land use related material consideration, as established in the case of the West Midlands 
Probation Committee v Secretary of State in 1997. The level of objection to the young parent 
element of the scheme proposed is significant. The majority of correspondence received 

Page 19



 - 12 - 

makes reference to the intended occupiers, problems which they may be suffering from and 
consequent links are made to increases in crime and antisocial behaviour and therefore 
apprehension of fear about the possible effects on the area and its residents. Therefore 
while the fear or apprehension of crime and antisocial behaviour is a material consideration, 
whether or not it is rational or fact based, it must be balanced against the likelihood that the 
perceived affects would occur. 
 
25. On the evidence of a number of the objections received, and as the Local Member 
for Parliament notes in her submission, there are undoubtedly a significant number of 
misconceptions about the precise nature of the young parent’s scheme. The young parent’s 
scheme is not a facility specifically for the treatment of people suffering from drug or alcohol 
addiction or the effects of domestic abuse or violence, and it is not a bail hostel as is alleged 
in some correspondence. The proposals involve the provision of 9 apartments with a 
communal facility for occupation by young parents, typically young women in the 16 to18 
age group who require support in adjusting to life as young parents and where the support of 
a partner or a family, for example, is not always available. As such the scheme seeks to, 
amongst other things: promote independent living; provide access to training and education; 
promote positive parenting; reduce conception rates; provide support with tenancy issues; 
and, promote healthy living. 
 
26. While some residents, by no means all, may have experienced some effects of drug 
or alcohol addiction or suffered the effects of domestic abuse or violence, the facility is in no 
way catering specifically for people with any or all such problems. Concerns are expressed 
that the apartments are not staffed 24 hours a day, however, staff are not present on site for 
security reasons but are solely there to provide support and encourage independent living, 
and hence there is no need to provide 24 hour staffing. Similarly, whilst CCTV is provided, 
this not a monitored system and is only there in the event that there may have been an 
incident. CCTV often forms a regular part of any supported housing scheme for vulnerable 
people, be it young parents or elderly people in a care home. Similarly, the security fencing 
referred to by a number of correspondents is not evident on the plans which include a range 
of timber fencing or brick walling with detailed railings above.  
 
27. Direct comparisons to a scheme at Coney Avenue on the Woodhouse Close Estate 
in Bishop Auckland have been made in letters of objection, and where a number of crime 
statistics have been provided by Durham Constabulary. The figures provided to residents 
under the Freedom of Information Act have, however, since been amended after a 
significant error was identified in this data. Fact based fears about crime and antisocial 
behaviour increasing at Coney Avenue and the surrounding area as a result of the young 
parents scheme there are unfounded. Crime statistics show that the number of Police Officer 
attended events in the estate around Coney Avenue area have fallen from 1777 in 2007  to 
1456 in 2010; a fall of some 18%, while incidence of crime fell by 33%. Further evidence 
provided by Police Officers operating in the area, indicates that since the scheme opened in 
September 2007, there have been 8 incidents of anti-social behaviour directly associated 
with the development, all of which have been described as minor incidents. Police Officers 
covering the area have advised that the Coney Avenue development does not add to any of 
the underlying issues concerning the Woodhouse Close Estate and that it can only have a 
positive impact on the lives of young parent’s who become involved with the initiative. 
 
28. There is therefore no evidence that the proposed use of the site as a supported 
housing scheme for young parents would, having regard to a similar scheme described 
above, lead to any material increase in crime or anti-social behaviour on the part of its 
residents and it is therefore considered that the significant increases in crime and anti-social 

Page 20



 - 13 - 

behaviour envisaged among objectors is unsubstantiated by facts whether rational or not. 
Such levels of public concern are considered not to be of such material weight given the 
limited likelihood of such feared events materialising, that the proposals could reasonably 
resisted for these reasons. The proposals would not conflict with Policies H13 and H16 of 
the Local Plan in this regard. In order to ensure that the scheme is occupied in the way in 
which planning permission has been sought, a planning condition to restrict the occupancy 
of the apartments would be appropriate. 
 
Highway Safety 
 
29. There is widespread concern among residents, the Local Member for Parliament 
and the Parish Council, that traffic directly associated with the proposed scheme will cause 
an increased risk to the safety of pedestrians and particularly school children at both the 
junction with Bradford Crescent and Musgrave Gardens but also within Dixon’s Lane, and 
that the surrounding road network is incapable of catering for the additional traffic. Policy T1 
of the Local Plan states that planning permission will not be granted for development that 
would be detrimental to highway safety. The proposed scheme includes the provision of a 
number of highway improvements which include the provision of dropped kerbs at the 
junction to ensure the safe passage of pedestrians and particularly school children, together 
with a widened carriageway including footpaths and new barriers. The Highway Authority 
has provided a detailed response to the application and considers that the layout of the site 
and level of parking to be provided is commensurate with the use and amount of 
development. Similarly, they consider that the level of traffic directly associated with the 
scheme can be catered for within the existing highway network. 
 
30. As identified at paragraph 17 above, the site is well served by public transport and 
local amenities are located nearby, such that the level of traffic generated would not be 
significant, perhaps around 60 to 80 movements spread throughout the day. There is 
acknowledged congestion in the area at the start and end of the school day, a common 
problem around most schools, however, one that will not be exacerbated by the opposed 
scheme. Residents with children attending the school would have no need to use their cars, 
and any traffic movements at these times is not likely to be so significant that it would unduly 
worsen the existing congestion. It is therefore considered, having due regard to the view of 
the Highway Authority that the particular uses proposed, improved highway layout and likely 
level of traffic to be generated that the proposals would not be to the detriment of highway 
safety, and accordingly, there is no conflict with Policy T1 of the Local Plan. 
 
Arboricultural and Ecological Implications 
 
31. Residents are concerned that the proposals involve the removal of all trees and 
hedgerows from the site, citing both impacts upon the character of the area and impact upon 
wildlife. The site, as a result of being developed in the past, is treed only to its periphery. The 
majority of these were intended to be removed, including a group of trees to the south-west 
corner and a number of more mature and visually important trees to the north site boundary. 
A revised Arboricultural Implications Assessment has now been submitted, which still sees 
the removal of a group of trees in the south-west corner as well as the trees and hedgerow 
immediately to the north of the site access. However, ten trees, most with some maturity and 
significance will not now be removed.  
 
32. The most important trees visually are now retained and ensure the contribution they 
make to the character of the area will continue. Together with soft landscaping and planting 
of trees along the site frontage, in and around the access and within the rear garden areas, 

Page 21



 - 14 - 

this will ensure that there is an overall gain in tree numbers at the site. The proposals ensure 
therefore that important trees are retained and new ones are planted to compensate for 
those removed, and as such the scheme accords with Policy E15. Whilst the loss of the 
hedgerow immediately to the north of the site access is regrettable, its removal is necessary 
in order to accommodate the improved highway layout and an enable the erection of timber 
fencing to enclose the rear gardens of the proposed apartments and the amenity space 
where children will play. Compensatory planting will address this loss, however. Conditions 
would be appropriate to ensure the protection of retained trees during construction, the 
standard of works to retained trees and the submission of a detailed compensatory soft 
landscaping scheme.  
 
33. Objectors are concerned that the removal of trees and hedgerows will adversely 
affect wildlife. As described above, the number of retained trees has markedly increased 
since submission to ensure that more mature trees likely to be used by nesting birds are 
retained, while it would be a condition of any planning permission that any trees or 
hedgerows which are to be removed would not be done during the bird breeding season 
(March to August inclusive) unless they have been checked by a suitably qualified ecologist. 
The Council’s Ecologist has advised that the site is of low ecological value, having no 
evidence of use by species especially protected in law, and raises no objection to the 
proposal subject to a condition requiring adherence to the mitigation measures outlined in 
the revised Extended Phase 1 and Protected Species Survey. As such, the scheme would 
not be contrary to the requirements of Policy E16 of the Local Plan. 
 
Flooding and Drainage 
 
34. A number of objectors have been concerned about the likelihood of localised 
flooding as result of increased surface water run-off from the development in view of the 
removal of vegetation and the increased level of hardstanding and buildings on site. In order 
to ensure that an appropriate means of surface water disposal is provided, Northumbrian 
Water Limited have advised any planning permission should be subject to a condition 
requiring full surface water drainage to ensure that there is no increased flood risk. In terms 
of foul drainage, Northumbrian Water Limited is satisfied that sufficient capacity exists in the 
network to cater for the additional demand arising from the development. 
 

Sustainable Construction 
 

35. Policy 38 of the RSS requires planning proposals to achieve high energy efficiency 
and minimise consumption in terms of the Code for Sustainable Homes (CSH). The 
proposed development seeks to meet CSH level 4, a minimum of 44% efficiency level over 
and above that required by the 2006 Building Regulations. Policy 38 also requires schemes 
of 10 or more dwellings to secure at least 10% of their energy from supply from 
decentralised and renewable or low-carbon sources. In this case, the predominantly south-
facing arrangement of buildings across the site enables the scheme to take advantage of 
passive solar gain, as required by Policy U14 of the Local Plan, in the form of solar 
photovoltaic panels to south, east and west-facing roofplanes in order to meet this 
requirement. A condition requiring the submission of details to show that the 10% 
requirement is achieved would be appropriate. 
 

Contaminated Land 
 

36. The application is accompanied by an extensive desk study examining the likelihood 
of the site being contaminated. The report concludes that on the basis of visiting the site and 
assessing data relating to historical land uses that any significant contamination is relatively 

Page 22



 - 15 - 

unlikely. There are some areas of made ground, however, which would be disturbed by the 
proposals and as such, further survey work is considered to be required in order to identify 
whether any made ground is contaminated, and if it is, the extent of decontamination 
measures required. The Environmental Health Section concurs with the conclusions of the 
submitted desk study and proposes the imposition of appropriate conditions to secure this. 
This approach is, in such circumstances, considered to accord with national advice in PPS23 
and Policy U11 of the Local Plan. 
 
Environmental Impact Assessment 
 
37. The absence of an Environmental Statement has been queried by many objectors. 
Residential developments fall within Part 10, Major Infrastructure Projects, of Schedule 2 of 
the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment (England and Wales) 
Regulations 1999 (as amended), and as such the application has been the subject of a 
screening opinion. Having regard to the criteria set out at Schedule 3 of the regulations, it is 
considered that the characteristics of the development, in terms of residential development 
in a predominantly residential area, together with the location of the development and the 
scale of the development is such that it would not cause significant environmental impacts. 
The proposals do not amount to EIA development and an Environmental Statement is not 
required to accompany an application of this nature. 
 
The weight of public opposition 
 
38. There is undoubtedly significant public opposition to the proposals, with many 
material planning considerations being raised.  However, Members should note that in a 
recent Ombudsman case, the Council was advised that “the number of objections should not 
be a significant factor in determining an application.  Rather it is the nature of those 
objections and the planning considerations they raise that are important.  It would be quite 
wrong for a Local Planning Authority to refuse an application on the basis of its popularity.” 
To this end it should also be noted that Local Planning Authorities are required by Section 
38(6) of the Planning and Compensation Act 2004 to determine applications in accordance 
with the development plan unless other material considerations indicate otherwise.  In this 
case, the application is considered to accord with the development plan for the area, and 
that the weight of opposition is not so significant a material consideration in its own right in 
this case as to justify a departure from the development plan. 

 

CONCLUSION 

 
39. In conclusion, it is considered that the proposed residential development comprising 
a mix of affordable family homes and supported apartments for young parents would 
represent the efficient and effective use of previously-developed land in a highly sustainable 
and accessible location, close to local amenities, public transport and educational facilities.  
 
40. The proposals are of an appropriate design, scale, layout and materials which would 
not result in significant adverse affects upon the residential character of the area, the privacy 
of adjoining residents, flora and fauna, or detriment to highway safety through an improved 
access shared with the adjacent school. Whilst it is acknowledged that there is significant 
local opposition to the young parents element of the overall scheme, there is no evidence to 
suggest that the occupation by young parents would be likely to lead a material increase in 
crime and antisocial behaviour in the area. Therefore, while material, public fear and 
apprehension about the effects of the land use in this case, whether rational or not, are 

Page 23



 - 16 - 

considered to be of insufficient weight to outweigh the otherwise acceptable nature of the 
development proposed and its accordance with relevant development plan policies. 
Accordingly, approval of the application is recommended, subject to the completion of a 
planning agreement and the imposition of proposed conditions. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
That the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than three 
years from the date of this permission. Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to 
section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 

following approved plans: Drawing No.s 08159/P100 rev C, 08159/P101 rev A, 
08159/P102 rev B, 08159/P103 rev B and 08159/P104 rev A received 1 February 
2011 and 08159/P105 rev B and 08159/P200 received 3 February 2010. Reason: In 
the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policies H2, H13 and Q8 of the City 
of Durham Local Plan 2004. 

 
3. Notwithstanding the submitted phase 1 report, an investigation and risk assessment 

must be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of 
any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site, and shall 
include a specification and verification for the location and treatment of the on site 
mine shafts. The contents of the scheme are subject to the approval in writing of the 
Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken 
by competent persons and a written report of the findings must be produced. The 
written report is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The 
report findings must include:  

  
a) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;  
b) an assessment of the potential risks to: human health; property (existing or        

proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service 
lines and pipes; adjoining land; groundwaters and surface waters; 
ecological systems; archaeological sites; and, ancient monuments;  

c) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).  
  

This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s 
‘Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11’. Reason: 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property 
and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out 
safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors 
in accordance with Policy U11 of the City of Durham Local Plan 2004. 
 

4. A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended 
use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property 
and the natural and historical environment must be prepared, and is subject to the 
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works 
to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable 
of works and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will 

Page 24



 - 17 - 

not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 
1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation. Reason: To ensure 
that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring 
land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological 
systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance 
with Policy U11 of the City of Durham Local Plan 2004. 

 
5. The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms 

prior to the commencement of development other than that required to carry out 
remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of 
commencement of the remediation scheme works. Following completion of measures 
identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification report that demonstrates 
the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced, and is subject to 
the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. Reason: To ensure that risks 
from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are 
minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, 
and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable 
risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with Policy U11 
of the City of Durham Local Plan 2004. 

 
6. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 

development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing 
immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment 
must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of condition 3, and where 
remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with 
the requirements of condition 4, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved 
remediation scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the 
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with condition 5. 
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried 
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite 
receptors in accordance with Policy U11 of the City of Durham Local Plan 2004. 

 
7. A monitoring and maintenance scheme to include monitoring the long-term 

effectiveness of the proposed remediation over a period of 5 years, and the provision 
of reports on the same must be prepared, both of which are subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority. Following completion of the measures 
identified in that scheme and when the remediation objectives have been achieved, 
reports that demonstrate the effectiveness of the monitoring and maintenance carried 
out must be produced, and submitted to the Local Planning Authority. This must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s ‘Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11’. Reason: To ensure 
that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring 
land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological 
systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance 
with Policy U11 of the City of Durham Local Plan 2004. 

 

Page 25



 - 18 - 

8. Notwithstanding any details of materials submitted with the application no 
development shall commence until details of the make, colour and texture of all 
walling and roofing materials have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The development shall be constructed in accordance with 
the approved details. Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory form of development is 
obtained in accordance with Policies H2 and Q8 of the City of Durham Local Plan 
2004. 

 
9. Development shall not commence until a detailed scheme for the disposal of surface 

water from the development hereby approved has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with Northumbrian Water 
Limited. Thereafter the development shall take place in accordance with the approved 
details. Reason: To ensure the discharge of surface water from the site does not 
increase the risk of flooding from sewers in accordance with requirements of Policy 
U8a of the City of Durham Local Plan 2004. 

 
10. Within one month of the commencement of the development, a detailed landscaping 

scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The scheme of landscaping shall include details of hard and soft landscaping, 
planting species, sizes, layout, densities, numbers, method of planting and 
maintenance regime, as well as indications of all existing trees and hedgerows on the 
land and details of any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in 
the course of development. Reason: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance 
with Policies H2, Q3 and Q8 of the City of Durham Local Plan 2004. 

 
11. The highway improvement works shown on drawing nos. 08159/P100 rev C and 

08159/P102 rev B shall be implemented fully in advance of the occupation of any 
dwelling hereby approved. Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance 
with Policy T1 of the City of Durham Local Plan 2004. 

 
12. Prior to the commencement of development, details, including samples, of the surface 

treatment and construction of all hard surfaced areas shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall be 
undertaken in accordance with the approved details. Reason: In the interest of visual 
amenity in accordance with Policy Q8 of the City of Durham Local Plan 2004. 

 
13. The 9 apartments and associated communal facility hereby approved shall not be 

used in connection with a bail hostel or as a drug/alcohol rehabilitation clinic. Reason: 
in the interests of the amenity of surrounding residential occupiers, in accordance with 
Policies H13 and H16 of the City of Durham Local Plan 2004. 

 
14. Prior to the commencement of the development a scheme to minimise energy 

consumption shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The scheme shall include at least 10% decentralised and renewable 
energy or low carbon sources. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in 
complete accordance with the approved scheme prior to first occupation and 
thereafter retained in perpetuity. Reason: In order to minimise energy consumption 
and to comply with RSS Policy 38 and Policy U14 of the City of Durham Local Plan 
2004. 

 
 
 

Page 26



 - 19 - 

15. No operation including movement or use of machinery shall take place outside of the 
hours of 8:00 to 17:30 Monday to Friday and between 8:00 and 12:00 on Saturdays. 
No work shall take place on any Sunday or Bank Holiday. Reason: In the interests of 
the amenity of surrounding residents in accordance with Policy H13 of the City of 
Durham Local Plan 2004. 

 
16. No development shall take place unless in accordance with the mitigation detailed 

within section D4 of the Extended Phase 1 and Protected Species Survey (E3 Ecology 
Ltd) including, but not restricted to adherence to timing and spatial restrictions; 
provision of mitigation in advance; undertaking confirming surveys as stated; and, 
adherence to precautionary working methods. Reason: In the interests of nature 
conservation in accordance with Policy E16 of the City of Durham Local Plan 2004. 

 

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATION 

1. The proposed residential development comprising a mix of affordable family homes 
and supported apartments for young parents would represent the efficient and 
effective use of previously-developed land in a highly sustainable and accessible 
location, close to local amenities, public transport and educational facilities. The 
proposals are of an appropriate design, scale, layout and materials which would not 
result in significant adverse affects upon the residential character of the area, the 
privacy of adjoining residents, flora and fauna, or detriment to highway safety through 
an improved access shared with the adjacent school. As such the proposals are 
considered to comply with of Policies E14, E15, E16, H2, H13, H16, T1, T10, R2, Q3, 
Q8, U8a, U11 and U14 of the City of Durham Local Plan 2004 (which is a saved plan 
in accordance with the Secretary of States Direction under paragraph 1 (3) of 
Schedule 8 to the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004), Policies 4, 7 and 24 
of the North East of England Plan - Regional Spatial Strategy to 2021. 

 
2. In particular the development was considered acceptable having regard to the 

appropriateness of the scale, design and density of the scheme upon the character of 
the area, whether privacy, outlook or overshadowing affects would be significantly 
adverse, and whether the proposed highway improvements would ensure that the 
scheme could be accommodated without detriment to highway safety, acknowledging 
the use of the access by schoolchildren. 

 
3. Whilst it is acknowledged that there is significant local opposition to the young parents 

element of the overall scheme, there is no evidence to suggest that the occupation by 
young parents would be likely to lead a material increase in crime and antisocial 
behaviour in the area. Therefore, while material, public fear and apprehension about 
the effects of the land use in this case, whether rational or not, are considered to be of 
insufficient weight to outweigh the otherwise acceptable nature of the development 
proposed. Other issues raised including highway safety, density of development and 
impacts upon flora and fauna are judged to be acceptable, in some cases following 
amendments to the proposals, and in other cases controlled through the imposition of 
appropriate planning conditions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 - 20 - 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Submitted Application Forms, Plans and Amended Plans 
Planning Statement 
Design and Access Statement 
Statement of Community Involvement 
Arboricultural Implications Assessment (amended) 
Phase I Desk Study Report 
Extended Phase 1 and Protected Species Survey (amended) 
Planning Policy Statements: PPS1, PPS3, PPS9, PPS22 and PPS23  
Planning Policy Guidance notes: PPG13 
North East of England Plan Regional Spatial Strategy to 2021 (RSS), July 2008 
City of Durham Local Plan 2004 
Circular 11/95: Use of conditions in planning permission 
SPD: Provision of Public Art as Part of Major New Development Schemes 
SPD: Provision of Affordable Housing  
Responses from Highway Authority, Northumbrian Water Limited and Police Architectural 
Liaison Officer 
Internal responses from Area Planning Policy Section, Design and Historic Environment 
Section, Ecology Section, Environmental health Section, Landscaping Section ad 
Sustainability Section 
Public Consultation Responses  
Response from Belmont Parish Council 
Various File Notes and Correspondence 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 - 21 -  

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Services 
 

  COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 

APPLICATION DETAILS 

 
APPLICATION NO: PL/5/2010/0584 
  
FULL APPLICATION DESCRIPTION DEMOLITION AND RECONSTRUCTION OF 

DWELLING 
 

  
NAME OF APPLICANT MR A NAPIER 
  
SITE ADDRESS MOOR VIEW, STATION ROAD, MURTON  

SR7 9RN 
  
ELECTORAL DIVISION MURTON 
  
CASE OFFICER Barry Gavillet 

0191 5274305 
barry.gavillet@durham.gov.uk 

 

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND PROPOSAL 

 
Site:  
 
1 This application site lies within the settlement boundary of Murton on the main road 

which runs through the village from east to west.  There is an existing detached 
dwelling on site which would be demolished to make way for the new development, 
therefore the site is considered to constitute brownfield land.  The site area 
measures approximately 585 square metres. There are residential properties 
surrounding the site, most of which are detached, two storey dwellings.  The site is in 
walking distance of a number of community facilities including local shops, public 
houses, schools and bus services. 

 
2 There are Grade II listed farm buildings across the main road to the north east of the 

site. 
 
Proposal:  
 
3 This application proposes a two-storey, four bedroomed dwelling with a floor area of 

197 square metres, which is 34 square metres larger than the dwelling it would 
replace.  The footprint of the new dwelling would be 95 square metres whilst the 
existing dwelling has a footprint of 61 square metres.  An existing detached single 
garage on the site would be retained, along with the existing perimeter fencing. 

Agenda Item 3b

Page 31



 
4 The existing property is finished in a cream render whereas the surrounding 

properties are mostly built from facing bricks.  The proposed dwelling would be built 
from facing brick and concrete roof tile, the colour and texture of which would be 
agreed with the Planning Authority.  White double glazed windows and doors would 
be installed which would have cast stone head and cill details. 

 
5 The site already has vehicular access onto Station Road which would remain in 

place throughout construction.  The access to the new dwelling would remain to the 
eastern side of the front garden and would give easy access to the existing garage 
and the rear garden. 

 
6 This application is being reported to committee, as the applicant is a County 

Councillor. 
 

PLANNING HISTORY 

 
None relevant. 
 

PLANNING POLICY 

 
7 NATIONAL POLICY: 
 
Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development (PPS1) sets out the 
Governments overarching planning policies on the delivery of sustainable development 
through the planning System. 
 
Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing (PPS3) underpins the delivery of the Government's 
strategic housing policy objectives and our goal to ensure that everyone has the opportunity 
to live in a decent home, which they can afford in a community where they want to live. 
 
Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic Environment (PPS5) sets out the 
Government's planning policies on the conservation of the historic environment. 
 
The above represents a summary of those policies considered most relevant. The full text can be accessed at: 
http://www.communities.gov.uk/planningandbuilding/planning/planningpolicyguidance/planningpolicystatements 

 
8 REGIONAL PLAN POLICY: 
 
Regional Spatial Strategy for the North East 
 
Policy 4: (The Sequential Approach to Development) provides that a sequential flange 
approach to the identification of land for development should be adopted to give priority to 
previously developed land and buildings in the most sustainable locations. 
 
The Coalition Government has indicated its intention to abolish Regional Strategies, and 
this should be taken into account when deciding planning applications, if it is likely to have a 
bearing on the decision. 

Page 32



 
9 LOCAL PLAN POLICY: 
 
District of Easington Local Plan 
 
Policy 1- Due regard will be had to the development plan when determining planning 
applications. Account will be taken as to whether the proposed development accords with 
sustainable development principles while benefiting the community and local economy. The 
location, design and layout will also need to accord with saved policies 3, 7, 14-18, 22 and 
35-38. 
 
Policy 24 - Development which adversely affects the character, appearance, special 
architectural features or setting of a listed building will not be approved. The retention of 
architectural or historic features will be encouraged. Demolition of a listed building will be 
only be allowed in exceptional circumstances. 
 
Policy 35 - The design and layout of development should consider energy conservation and 
efficient use of energy, reflect the scale and character of adjacent buildings, provide 
adequate open space and have no serious adverse effect on the amenity of neighbouring 
residents or occupiers. 
 
Policy 36 - The design and layout of development should ensure good access and 
encourage alternative means of travel to the private car. 
 
The above represents a summary of those policies considered most relevant in the Development Plan the full 
text, criteria, and justifications of each may be accessed at 
http://www.durham.gov.uk/Pages/Service.aspx?ServiceId=7534 

CONSULTATION AND PUBLICITY RESPONSES 

 
10 STATUTORY RESPONSES: 
 
Parish Council – no objections 
 
Northumbrian Water – no objections 
 
11 INTERNAL CONSULTEE RESPONSES: 
 
Highways Officer – no objections.  Access and parking arrangements acceptable. 
 
Environmental Health – Contaminated land study required 
 
Planning Policy – no objections. 
 
12 PUBLIC RESPONSES: 
 
The application has been advertised by way of a press notice, a site notice and individual 
letters to surrounding residents. No comments have been received. 

Page 33



 
13 APPLICANTS STATEMENT: 
 
The development has been designed sympathetically with regard to the adjacent dwellings. 
The existing dwelling has reached the end of its economic life and is beyond economic 
repair.  The new dwelling complements the adjacent dwellings and will benefit the area. 
 
The above represents a summary of the comments received on this application. The full written text is available for 
inspection on the application file which can be viewed at 

http://planning.easington.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=112133. Officer analysis of the issues 

raised and discussion as to their relevance to the proposal and recommendation made is contained below 

PLANNING CONSIDERATION AND ASSESSMENT 

 
The main planning considerations in this instance are planning policies, impacts on 
surrounding residents and the street scene and highways issues.  
 
14 Planning Policy 
 
The proposed development is considered to be in keeping with the relevant Development 
Plan Policies.  Relevant National guidance in relation to new housing development is found 
within PPS1:  Delivering Sustainable Development and PPS3:  Housing. Government policy 
requires a sequential approach to the identification of housing sites, which prioritises land in 
sustainable urban areas.  In this instance this application relates to an existing housing plot 
in a residential area which is situated within the settlement boundary of Murton.  The 
proposals are therefore considered to accord with the general principles of national 
planning policy. 
 
The Regional Spatial Strategy for the North East provides a sequential approach for 
development in Policy 4.  Although this relates to the identification of land for development 
in Local Development Frameworks it can also be seen as relevant where there is 
insufficient allocated land for development.  The policy promotes previously developed sites 
within urban areas as being the most sequentially preferable locations for development.  If 
such locations do not exist, the development plan should consider, in sequence; other 
suitable locations within urban areas; suitable sites and locations adjoining urban areas; 
and suitable sites in settlements outside urban areas.  As this application relates to a 
sustainable site situated within the settlement of Murton, it is considered to accord with the 
general principles of RSS in terms of a sequential approach for development. The aims of 
this policy are reflected in other national policies, therefore the potential abolition of 
Regional Strategies would not affect the outcome of this application. 
 
15 Impacts on surrounding occupiers and the street scene 
 
The design, scale and layout of the development are considered to be generally 
acceptable.  There is no consistent design surrounding the site that could influence this 
scheme, the use of brick and tile would be considered acceptable although a condition 
should be used to control specific materials.  The plot on which the dwelling would be 
located is fairly large and could easily accommodate a new dwelling of the size proposed 
whilst maintaining adequate garden space to the front and rear along with the access and 
detached garage.  The design of the dwelling is considered to be of good quality, the 
stepped shape and varying roof heights along with detailing to the doors and windows 
would add interest to the street scene.  The siting of the proposed dwelling is almost on the 
same footprint as the existing dwelling although it would project slightly further to the front 
and rear.  As such, the relationship with adjacent properties is largely maintained.  The 
window openings would be such that there would be no adverse impact on nearby 

Page 34



properties in terms of any loss of light, privacy or overshadowing.  Distancing standards 
between the new dwelling and all surrounding properties would be achieved. 
 
With regard to the Grade II listed farm buildings to the north east of the site, it is not 
considered that the proposed replacement dwelling would have an adverse impact on their 
settings.  This is due to there being an existing dwelling on the site, which would be 
replaced by a dwelling of better quality design, and that the listed buildings are across the 
main road approximately 60 metres to the north east of the site.    
 
Accordingly, the proposals are considered to be in accordance with District of Easington 
Local Plan policies 1, 24 and 35.  
 
16 Highways Issues 
 
The Highways Authority are satisfied that there would be no significant problems caused by 
traffic and that parking provision and access are acceptable.  In addition, the site is well 
served by bus services and community facilities and as such the site is considered a 
sustainable location for residential development. 
 

CONCLUSION 

 
17 The replacement dwelling is considered to be in accordance with the relevant 

development plan policies in that it is a brownfield site within the settlement boundary 
of Murton with easy access to community facilities and transport links, therefore it is 
a sustainable location for residential development. The dwelling would make a 
positive contribution to the street scene and would have no adverse impacts on 
surrounding occupiers. It is also considered that there would be no adverse impacts 
on the setting of the nearby listed buildings. In conclusion it is considered that the 
proposed replacement dwelling is acceptable. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
18 That the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions; 
 

Conditions: 

 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission. 
Reason:  Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 

 
2. Notwithstanding any details of materials submitted with the application no 

development shall commence until samples of the external walling and roofing 
materials have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local planning 
authority.  The development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved 
details. 
Reason:  In the interests of the appearance of the area and to comply with saved 
policies 1 and 35 of the District of Easington Local Plan. 

Page 35



 
3. The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until: 
 

a) A desk-top study is carried out to identify and evaluate all potential sources of 
contamination and the impacts on land and/or controlled waters, relevant to 
the site.  The desk-top study shall establish a 'conceptual site model' and 
identify all plausible pollutant linkages.  Furthermore, the assessment shall set 
objectives for intrusive site investigation works/Quantitative Risk Assessment.  
Two copies of the study shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority if identified as being required following the 
completion of the desk-top study. 

 
b) The application site has been subjected to a detailed scheme for the 

investigation and recording of contamination, and remediation objectives have 
been determined through risk assessment, and agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority. 

 
c) Detailed proposals for the removal, containment or otherwise rendering 

harmless of any contamination (the 'Reclamation Method Statement') have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
d) The works specified in the Reclamation Method Statement have been 

completed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 

e) If during reclamation or redevelopment works any contamination is identified 
that has not been considered in the Reclamation Method Statement, then 
remediation proposals for this material shall be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority 

Reason:  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried 
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite 
receptors in accordance with Planning Policy Statement 23 - Planning and Pollution 
Control.  

 
4. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 

following approved plans.  Plan References;  Location plan 1909/00B, Existing 
Dwelling Photos and Site Plan 1909/01B, Proposed Plans, Elevations and Site Plan 
1909/02C 
Reason:  To define the consent and ensure that a satisfactory form of development 
is obtained in accordance with saved policy 1 & 35 of the District of Easington Local 
Plan. 

 

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The development was considered acceptable having regard to the following 

development plan policies: 
 

DISTRICT OF EASINGTON LOCAL PLAN 
DISTRICT OF EASINGTON LOCAL PLAN 
DISTRICT OF EASINGTON LOCAL PLAN 
DISTRICT OF EASINGTON LOCAL PLAN 
PLANNING POLICY STATEMENT/GUIDANCE 
PLANNING POLICY STATEMENT/GUIDANCE 
PLANNING POLICY STATEMENT/GUIDANCE 
REGIONAL SPATIAL STRATEGY NE 

ENV35 - Environmental Design: Impact of Development 
ENV24 – Listed Buildings 
ENV36 - Design for Access and the Means of Travel 
GEN01 - General Principles of Development 
PPS1 - Delivering Sustainable Development 
PPS3 – Housing 
PPS5 - Planning for the Historic Environment  
RSS Policy 4 

Page 36



 
2. In particular the development was considered acceptable having regard to 

consideration of issues of planning policy, the impact on the street scene and 
surrounding occupiers and highway safety. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
- Submitted Application Forms and Plans. 
- Design and Access Statement 
- North East of England Plan Regional Spatial Strategy to 2021 (RSS) July 2008 
- District of Easington Local Plan 2001 
- Planning Policy Statements / Guidance, PPS1, PPS3, PPS5 
- Consultation Responses  

 
 

 

 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Services 

COMMITTEE REPORT 

APPEAL UPDATE (DURHAM CITY AREA OFFICE)  

 

APPEALS RECEIVED:  

 

Appeal by Mr S A Baz  
Site at Queens Head Public House, 3 North View, Ludworth, Durham,  DH6 1NF  
 
An appeal has been lodged by Mr S A Baz against the Council’s refusal to grant planning 
permission for subdivision of vacant public house to form 1 no. A1 retail unit and 1 no. A5 
hot-food takeaway, with elevational changes to front of building, and erection of extraction 
flue to rear at Queens Head Public House, 3 North View, Ludworth, Durham, DH6 1NF. This 
was originally reported to Committee on 11 January 2011. 
 
The appeal is now to be dealt with by way of an informal hearing as decided by the Planning 
Inspectorate and the Committee will be advised of the outcome in due course.  
 
Recommendation:  
 

That the report be noted.  
 

 
Appeal by Mr Rathbone  
Site at Barnsett Grange, Sunderland Bridge, Durham, DH6 5BX  
 
An appeal has been lodged by Mr Rathbone against the Council’s refusal to grant planning 
permission for the erection of a conservatory to rear at 4 Barnsett Grange, Sunderland 
Bridge, Durham, DH6 5BX.  
 
The appeal is to be dealt with using the Householder Appeals Service and by way of written 
representations and the Committee will be advised of the outcome in due course.  
 
Recommendation:  
 
That the report be noted.  
 
 
APPEAL DECISIONS:  

 
Appeal by Mr P Johnson 
Site at 15 Brockwell Court, Brandon, Durham DH7 8QX 
 
An appeal was lodged by Mr Johnson against the Council’s decision to refuse planning 
permission for the erection of decking to the rear of the dwelling. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 39



The Inspector dismissed the appeal, and in reaching his decision considered the main issue 
to be the effect of the development on the living conditions of occupiers of adjoining 
dwellings in terms of any overlooking.  
 
The timber decking has been erected in the rear garden of 15 Brockwell Court, a mid 
terraced property, part of high density housing built on sloping ground. The decking has 
been built into the slope, on the boundary with no. 14 and stands well above the ground floor 
level of the houses. 
 
The Inspector considered the scale and elevated position of the decking affords views of the 
gardens and main habitable rooms on the back of the adjoining houses. In the case of no. 16 
the intervening path reduces the degree of direct overlooking. However, with regard to no. 
14 the Inspector considered the intensity of the overlooking to be oppressive, leaving little by 
way of private space. This, he did not consider, was ameliorated by the low screening that is 
incorporated into the decking. 
 
As a result, the Inspector considered the enjoyment the occupiers might reasonably expect 
from these parts of their dwelling has been diminished. Accordingly, the development has 
brought about a harmful change in the living conditions of the occupiers of this dwelling, 
contrary to Policy Q9 of the City of Durham Local Plan 2004.      
 
He also took into account the views of interested parties in reaching his decision, including 
the appellant’s arguments, the fact the neighbour who complained has since moved and a 
similar development nearby, but these considerations did not persuade him to allow a 
development that he considered harmful to the living conditions of the occupiers of an 
adjoining dwelling. 
   
Recommendation: 
  
That the decision be noted. 
 
 

 

Page 40



Planning Services 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 

APPEAL UPDATE (EASINGTON AREA OFFICE)  

1. APPEALS RECEIVED:  

 

Appeals by Mrs P Emanuel 
Site at Poultry Farm, Off Dene Road, Dalton-le-Dale, Seaham, SR7 8QW 

Planning Reference- PL/5/2010/0408 

 
An appeal has been lodged against the Council’s refusal of the variation of a previous 
approval for the retention and use of a static caravan at the above site for security purposes.  
 
Planning permission was refused due to the size and appearance of the caravan, and its 
location outside of the settlement boundary; and the proposal constituted an inappropriate 
form of development in the countryside for which no satisfactory justification had been 
provided with the application. 
 
The appeal is to be dealt with by means of written representations, and members will be 
informed of the outcome in due course.  
 
Recommendation:  
 
That the report be noted. 
 

 
Appeals by Mr J Oliver 
Site at Hastings House Farm, Littletown, Durham, DH6 1QB 

Planning Reference- PL/5/2010/0442 

 
An appeal has been lodged against the Council for the non-determination of an application 
for the change of use from office accommodation and canteen building to include agricultural 
worker’s accommodation and associated alterations to elevations at the above site.  
 
The appeal was previously reported to members on 1 February 2011 as being dealt with via 
written representations. It has been changed and is to now to be dealt with by means of a 
Hearing; members will be informed of the outcome in due course.  
 
Recommendation:  
 
That the report be noted. 

 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 1 February 2011.
	3a 4/10/893/FPA - Former Durham Gilesgate Primary School, Kepier Crescent, Gilesgate Moor, Durham, DH1 1PH.
	3b PL/5/2010/0584 - Moor View, Station Road, Murton, SR7 9RN.
	4 Appeal Update.
	Appeal Update (Easington)


